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ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE NEMEC: This morning

2‘{ we are at the at the case captioned Department of

Transportation of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
versus csX Transportation; Incorporated.

The matter is docketed at C923909.

My name is Michael Nemec. I'm the
Administrative Law’Juage with the Pennéylvania
Public Utility Commigsion assigned to conduct this
hearing and any other hearings ﬁhat may be required
in this matter and to prepare a recommended
decision.

I'd like to start by having counsel identify
thenselves and state on the record the parties that
they represent.

ﬂR. SALAPA; My name is David A. Salapa. I'm
here on behalf of the Liaw Bureau of the Public
Utility Commission.

:MS. D'ALFONSO: Gina M. D'Alfonso. I'm
Assistant Counsel with the Pennsylvania Department
of Transportation.

MS. POYNTER: And I am Wandaleen Poynter,

 senior counsel with CSX Transportation, Inc.

JUDGE NEMEC: Does counsel have any
preliminary matters béfore we start?

MS. POYNTER: No, Your Honor.
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JUDGE NEMEC: All xight,
There are a set of guestions and proce&ures
that have been prepared. Unless there's an

objection, we'll follow these and have each party

present testimony that they wish to present in

conjunction with the questions and procedures.

Any objection with regard to the questions
and procedures?

MR. SALAPA: No.

MS. POYNTER: No.

JUDGE NEMEC: All right.

Lét's have all witnesses who intend to
testify today stand.

(All potential witnesses were duly sworn at
this time.) |

JUDGE NEMEC: We'll start with the Department

of'Transportation.

MS. D'ALFONSO: Thank you, Your Honor.

At this time, I would like to call Henry
Farrell. |

HENRY FARRELL, called as a witness, having
been previously sworn, was examined and testified
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:
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Q0 Would you please state your full name?

A My name is Henry W. Farrell.

Q By whom are you employed?

A Pennsylvahia Department of Transportation.

Q In what capacity are you enployved with the
Pennsylvania Department of Transportation?

A I'ma civil engineer in the Bureau of
Design.

Q@ Do you have any specific responsibility as
& civilyengineer in the Bureau of Design?

A Yes, I do.

I have tQSponsibility to investigate the
particular structure that we're discussing today.

Q Therefore, you are familiar with this
structure and the dquestions and procedures?

A Yes.

I was present at the field view when we
looked at the structure.

Q And are you authorized by the Department

of Transportation to testify in today's proceeding?

A Yes, I am.
Q@ With that, I would direct your attention
to question #1, which asks the Department to submit
testimony describing the general location of all

highway crossings involved in this proceeding.
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A The particular cross;ng is located in
Washington County, Buffalo Township. It's midway
betwaen Intérstate Route 50 and Taylorstown.

The highway involved with the crossing is
State Route 3009, andee do have an exhibit
prepared that's the location of this crossing.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I'm going to show you what's
béenmmarkéd as PennDOT Exhibit 1.

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

0 1Is that the location that you're referring

.to?
| A That's correct.
0 How is the structure identified on that
map? |
A The structure is identified by a‘yellow

cgirele.

Q Question #2 asks the Department to submit
testimohy describing the general type of structure,
the number of spans, principalldiménsions -~ and to
state the genéral physical éondition thereof.

A The structure itself consists of a tunnel

which has approximately a 30-foot embankment over

it and railroad tracks of CS8X Transportation on top

of the £ill.

The structure itself is a tunnel which
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carries a railroad over State Route 3009 and also
in addition, Buffalo Creek or maybe Little Buffalo
Créek, I'm not sure, passes through the tunnel and

underneath the roadway.

The Department records indicate the structure

‘was built in 1907 and, presumably, constructed by

the railroad company at that time.

State Route 3009 is presently closed due to
damage on the abutments of the arch structure which
supports thekroadway deck and this damage was
caused by scouring of Buffalo Creek.

Q What is scouring?

A Scouring is erosion, oxr washout would be a

;good way to describe it, the portion of the

structure, abutment portion, which is below the
wéterline of Buffalo Creek.

‘The dimensions of the tunnel arch is not a
Department structure. I'm not sure if we did any
measurements on it, bﬁt to the best of my
recollection, I'm informed that there is 13 feet

vertical clearance and very limited horizontal

:»clearance here, as the arch-type structure does

restrict both vertical and horizontal clearance for
traffic.

Q The next question, guestion #3, asks the
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Department to submit data concerning the highway

traffic before the structure was closed to traffic,

including --

A The structure is présently closed.‘

By previous traffic information, we estimate
that 500 cars would use this.structure daily, if it
wére open.

We are proposing to do some repairs which

we'll discuss later that will open the structure to
- restricted weight limits; three tons, five tons
- maximum, and with these weight restrictions, there

would be no heavy vehicles, no heavy truck traffic.

What we're proposing is basically to open

thig to cars and light vehicles.

Q Question #4 asks the Department to state
the present obligation with~rQSpeat to maintenance
of the existing structure.

A The Department recognizes no obligation
with respect to maintenance of the existing
structure. |

Q Question #5 asks fhe Department to state
the nature, type, extent, date, cost and other

specific pertinent details as to any recorded

| substantial items of maintenance and/or repairs on

existing structure.
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A Neither the Department nor any of its
contractors has done any repairs to this strﬁcturé.
We just placed some stdne on the stream bank ﬁo
guard against further erosion and undermining of
the structure, but this minor stone placement had
nothing to do with the structure itself. It was
done upstream.

Q That was to divert the water from the
damaged area?

A That's correct.

Q Question #6 asks the Department to state

whether the existing crossing is adequate for the

“¢onvenience and safety of the public, or should be

altered, rehabilitated or demolished; and if so, to
submit testimony regarding the deneral nature and
all workup changes. |

A As we previously said, currently the
roadway is closed, and to open the roadway, it
would be necessary to make the repairs to both
abutments.

And with the type of repairs that we are
proposing,kthis would allow the crossing, the
roadway, to bg open to three ton posting, which is
significantly lighter than the legal load limits.

In order to obtain legal load Iimits, 15 ton
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for heavier vehicles, it's our opinion that the

structure would have to be replaced.

Q0 What type of work would be necessary for
this structure to be opened for the three to five
ton load Iimit?

A We've done some preliminary estimates.

At this time, we don't have any plans done to
date.

| My understanding is that the stream itself
would be dammed and pumped dry, as well as we're

able to in the area of the abutments, and then

after we expose the area in guestion, we go in

there and do some form work with some wood and

- would pour concrete in the abutment, £ill in the

eroded or cracked areas and strengthen the abutmenf
with concrete reinforcement, as required.

The preliminary estimate for these repairs is
$50,000.

Q That is a preliminary estimate?

A The preliminary cost estimate for these
repairskis $50,000. Right now, that's a very rough
estimate.

Q Question #7 asks the‘Department to state
whether it has prepared any inspection reports,

plans, or cost estimates as may be required for

10
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1 || work necessary or advisable at this location.

2 A The Department has performed safety

3 k ihspections on the‘structure, and several yéars ago
4 || we had a consultant do an underwater inspection.

5 i At that time the result of that iaspection

s.l revealed the problems which justified c¢losing the

7>‘ roadway.

8 |l Other than that, we've only done cursory

9" inspections of the structure itself.

10 Siﬁce it's not our structure, we haven't done

1 anything extensive with it.

12!IV Our preliminary repair estimate of $50,000 is
B ' 13 basically based on the consultant's report that was
L~M 14“ done several years &go.

15 JF ~Q Question #é,asks the Department to state

16 : whether any bridge bill funds are available to be
17 used at this location.

18 :’ A There are no bridge bill funds currently
19 || available for this location.

20 | | Q Question #9 asks the Department to submit
21  testimony as to what portion, if any, of any

22 tonstruction work thét they will agree to perform,
23 and what portion, if any, of the cost --

24 A We've already contacted the Commission on

s || this by letter of August 25, 1992, and by that
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letter we have agreed to do the necessary repairs
to open the roadway to vehicular traffic.
We will do this at our initial cost and

expense in the interest of public safety; however,

we feel that the responsibility here rests with ¢8X

Transportation Company, and in today's hearing we
are trying to get reimbursement for this work.

We will not agree to assume any of the costs,
nor will we agree to assume any future maintenance
costs for the structure.

The work will be dohe at our initial cost and
expense in the interest of public safety.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have nothing further for

Mr. Farrell. He's available for c¢ross-examination.

JUDGE NEMEC: CSX.
MS. POYNTER: Yes, thank you.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. POYNTER:

Q Mr. Farrell, you've indicated that your
Departmentkhas -~ forgive my use of terms. I think
you placed some riprap which has rechanneled the
movement of Buffalo Creek?

A I'm not sure that it rechannels the
movement exactly, but we did plaCe some riprap on

the upstream side of the structure, and the purpose
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of that was to try to avoid any further damage from
erosion of the stream.

Q Do you recall if at any time that it would
try to rechannel the movement of the creek?

‘A No, I do not.

0 Have you had an -- when did you exactly
put this riprap in?

A Our records have December of '90.

It would have been a very small operation,

and it would have been done by our maintenance

forces.

Q Has there been an inspection of the site
since that date?

A Yes, there was. There was an inspection
done by the Department people, structure people,
and it was done June 1; 1992;

At that time, again this was é cursory
inspection, but at that time we found no

significant changes from the earlier recommendation

and the garlier problems that were reported with

the structure.

Q Was there any indication when you made
that inspection that the riprap was doing what it
should be doing?

A I really can't say.

13
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It seems to me that the damage was already
done,; and whether or not itkprevented any further
damage would be very difficult to say. |

Q Would you describe for me precisely what
inspectihg a structure of this nature entails?

Do you have a checklist that vou follow, or
is there some pattern that you follow in making
these inspections?

A Yes, there is a checklist that we would
follow in making this type of inspection. HOWeVer,
in this case of inspection, I understand it was a
very cursory inspection because the roadway is
closed and it's not a Department structure.
Therefore, it was a very quick inspection, so to
speak, not the indepth thing we would do on a
Department bridge that was currently open. 

Q It was a little misleading because I
hadn't limited my gquestion to the June 1, 1990
ingspection, but to the normal inspection_whicﬁ your
Departnent would make of a structure.

A The normai inspection would include a
checklist of various things that we would look for
in a structure, and it would include many things;
condition of the roadwéy, the abutments, beéring

joints, any supporting steel; whatever would be

14
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involved in the structufe to assure us that it
would bé safe for the traveling public.

Q kAnd about how long does it normally take
foi: that kind of inspection to be made?

(An off-the-record discussion was held.)

BY MS. POYNTER:
Q Who was responsible for getting the
preliminary estimate of that?

We 're talking about today.

Is that a level of approximately §$50,000 for
recdnstruction?

A That was done by our District 12-0 bridge
and design people. It was done in-house by the
Department.

9 And did I hear you -- correct me if you
didn't say it, but basically the estimate was based
on the prior engineering report that you had |
commissioned several yéars ago?

A Yes.

Q Now, I believe there were two.

Can you specify for me which one you're
relyving on at this time?

MS. D‘aLFONSO: Perhaps that's best suited
for Mr. Herbert.

BY MS. POYNTER:
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0 You indicated there was no bridge bill
funds.

Forgive me for my ignorance, but can you
explain for me what that phrase means "bridge bill
funds"?

A The Department dces have a 12-year plan
for structures which need replacement are
recognized and funded.

The c¢cost constructioﬁ'is Questioﬂ is not
currently funded by any monies for any‘type of
repairs or replacement wiihin'the next few years,

Q@ And this 12~year piogram is based solely
and SPGCifically on State funds?

“A It's based on priority, and funding is
nade available as those priorities come up.

This particular c¢rossing is on the bridge
bill, but it's not funded. It's on the latter
portion of the bridge bill, at least four years
from the present date, and there are no funds
committed for it.

During that period of time, this type of
priority could éhange, which is a normal thing.

Every year priorities are reviewed and some
projects may move ahead and others may move behind.

At this time we really can't say what would
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VWhat I'm saying at this point is, there are

no available funds currently for the replacement or

repair of this structure.

Q@ On a structure where you do have funds

‘available, do those funds come out of the State

funds, or do they come out of State funds that have

been donated by the Federal Highway Department?

A They could be either; they could be

1;Federal, State, or it could be State money, and

that's another decision that would be made at the
time that the placement structﬁre is actually
programmed.

And to complicate things further, the funding
could change from the time that we initially decide
to do the work and start construction.

Q Do I understand you éorrectly, that in
this bridge bill fund all bridges within the State
of Pennsylvania are prioritized somewhere on‘that
list?

A Well, not all, but the bridges that we
feel within a 12-year period would need some
attention would be'prioritized or put on theklist
by the district that is making that recommendation.

Q And you did indicate that the bridge that
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is the subject of this hearing is on the list?

A Right. |

Q You indicate that you project that there
would be 500 cars that would'use this bridge on a
daily basis iﬁ\it were reopened?

A That's correct.

Q Could I ask you how ?ou arrived at that
figure? |

A That was done, again in-house by the
Department, and‘thé projectionsg were baéed onh
previous traffic counts béfore the ¢rossing was
closed.

Q Do you have anything in your files that
you could give me a little more specificity on
that?

For instance, was this an officiallccunt that
was done with a counter, or some kind of State
project where céunts‘Were taken of specific
arteries,‘or precisely why did you have that céuht

done?

A Well, we have traffic counts on just’about’

every road, so it's done at one particular time or
another.
And thisg particular crossing has been closed

since 1989, and I don't have any hard data with me

18
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to back up the traffic count. That information was

‘supplie& by our district in-house people. And as I

indicated, it was based on previous counts before
the structure was closed.

We obviously haven't done'anything here since
1989.

- Q Could you téll me what changes and basic
configurations of roads have occurred in and around
the area we're talking about?

For instance, have there been any new roads
built? Have there been any roads closed? Has
there been any adtivity;that would or could impact
the level of traffic on this road‘since 19897

A From driving aroundkthe area when I viewed
the structure, I didn't notice anything df any
significance in that area.

I'm informed by the district people that

there were no significant c¢hanges to the road or

configuration or construction that would have

chahged things since the c¢rossing itself was
closed.

Q Can you tell me where the traffié has been
diverted by the ¢losing of this bridge?k

A By inspection of Exhibit 1, the traffic

that would use this State Route 3009 would most
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likely go over to Traffic Route 221, which is I
would say, a mile east of the subject crossing.

Q 1Is that also‘é State road?

A That is a State road.

Q So we can assume that the diverted traffic
of 500 cars has been diverted to State Road 2217

A I would say that's corredt.}

Now, they could alsc by further inspection,
they could also use Township Road T-422, which is
west of the crossing at a distance of about twice
as far as Traffic Route 221. |

It may be that some vehicle would take that

| pattern.

Q@ You indicated that your =-- I think I am to
defer all guestions about the §$50,000 preliminary
estimate to the next witness; is that correct?

f»Ms‘ D'ALFONSO: Yes.

MS. POYNTER: I have no further questions of
this witness at this time.

JUDGE NEMEC: Commission.

MR. SALAPA: Thank you, Your Honor.

CROSS~EXAMINATION

BY MR. SALAPA:
Q@ Mr. Farrell, in your research on the

traffic count, could vou tell whether there hasg
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been any truck traffic¢ using the structure prior to
its closure?

A We don't have any information on that.

if you would like a guess on my part, an
assumption, there's normally two to fivé percent
truck traffic on a road like this, but due to the
configuration of this arch, we have vertical and
horizontal restrictions, so there's very little
truck traffic prior to 1989.

Q You stated that the Department is going to
do the repair work necessary tokopen the structure
back up.

Is part of that going to be preparing plans
for the work yvou're going to do?

A Yes.

Q Approximately how iong will it take to
preparé those plans?

A Sixty days.

Q0 So they would be ready for submission to
the Commission within 60 days; is that what you're
saying?

A Yes.

Q Does the work that you are proposing just
involve the bridge? Does it include anything like

replacing guardrails, or is it strictly limited to

21
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the structure itself?

A The structure.

Q  Are you aware that there was repair work
done to the structure by CsX?

A 1 am aware that there was some work done
in the area of the structure. I'm not familiar
with exactly CSX has done to the structure.

Q ?air enough. I'l1 defer that question to
the next witness.

Once these repairs are made to the structure,
does the Department have any estimate as to how
long these repairs will last?

In other woxrds, if the bridge is opened back
up for hard traffic, how 1ong will it be before
nore repairs may be necessary?

A We don't have that infdrmation. That
would be very difficult to say.

MR. SALAPA: That's all I have.

JUDGE NEMEC: Mr. Farrell, I want to

understand the thing we're dealing with here.

EXAMINATION
BY JUDGE NEMEC:
Q From your description, this is a bridge

carrying the roadway above Buffalo Creek, but it's

also within a culvert-type setting or a tunnel?
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A That's correct.

Q0 And on top of the tunnel or £ill are the
railroad tracks?

A That's correct, Your Honor.

Q Do vou have information as to when the
structure was built?

A No, I don't. I'm sorry.

By structure, are you referring to the arch

itself?
Q The bridge over the stream.
A ©No, Your Honor, T don'‘t.
Q Or the arch carrying the railroad tracks?
A The arch itself, which is a railroad

gtructure, that was built in 1907.
| Q So the railroad built the structure.
Did the railroad build the highway structure
as well? |

A No, I don't think so, Your Honor. I

“teally don't know. ' !

Q And did the railroad structure, the arch
over the c¢rossing, did that c¢ome sometime after the
roadway Waé in place, or the bridge was in place,
or before? P

A We don't know.

Q Don'‘t knoW;

23




24

s Since this has been closed sgince 1989, do you
2 )} have any information regarding the effect on the
3Ji local community of this closing?
sl A The reason that we are doing the work tofk
s || reopen the structure is because of input frdm the
& : local community3 L
! @ And what type of informétibn have you
8 . received? |
9 A We've been approached by --
10 : Q 1Is there someone else who can talk about
| that or testify to that? | |
12 A Could 1 just have a second, Your anor?
{_; , 13 | ‘ Q Sure.
T : 14 “ A Senator Barry Stoudt (phonetic), Your
15 f ‘H‘o-"nor. '
1w || He was c¢ontacted by constituents who assured
7 residents of the immediate area that,complained
13!{ about the road, from the structure being closed;
15" én&'#hat‘s one of the reasons that Qe’re,acting on

20‘§ this right now.

o I 0 Dokyou~have any alternatives to repairing
2 the structure or its course, for example rerouting
% || the roaa?

a0 | A No, Your Honor.

25 We did have some very preliminary discussion
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on what it would take, for instahce a replacement,
which would probably include rechanneling the
stream and changing the road configuration, and it
would be a very involved, costly préject. We're
1ookin§ at billions of dollars.

JUDGE NEMEC: I have no additional gqguestions.

Are vou through with the witness?

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have a few more duestions.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

‘Q Mr. Farrell, isn't it true that this road
and this crossing was posted in 19877

A Yes, that's true.

Q0 So between 1987 and the time the bridge
was closed, there would not have been anvy heavy
vehiclesg?

A That's correct.

Q And when the State sets up a detour, does
the State always detour on State routes?

A Not necessarily.

Q0 But an official detour would generally be
on a State route?

A We‘wgulé try to f£ind the best available
road to accommodate the traffic. In most cases,

that would be a State route.

25
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MS. D'ALFONSO: I have nothing further from

Mr. Farrell.

JUDGE NEMEC: Any other questions?
MR. SALAPA: No further questions.
JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you, sir, you're excused.

DON HERBERT, called as a withessg, having been

previously sworn, was examined and testified as

foliows:

BY MS.

DIRECT EXAMINATION

D'ALFONSO:

WQuld you please state your full name?

Q

A Donald Wayne Herbert.

Q- By whom are you employed?
A

The Pennsylvania Department of

Transportation.

Q How are you employed by the Department of

Transportation?

A T am Assistant District Bridge Engineer in

District 12-0 Bridge Unit.

Q Are you ==
A Yes, I am.
Q0 How long haVe'you been --
A I believe’abont four vears.
- Q@ How long have you been with.PennDOT?
A Nine years.
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Q And are yvou familiar with this cfossing
and the structure?

A Yes, I am.

Q You heard some questions initially about
the riprap or the stones that Ms. Poynter was
addressing to Mr. Farrell.

Can you c¢lear that up a little?

Whaﬁ did the Department do with the stream?

A To the best of our records, we were
directed or had aygreed to place stone as a result
of a PUC field conference.

Essentially, what we were trying to db, what
we were trying to accomplish with the stone, was to
£ill in an area that had presumably been causing
the'stieam to be directed towards the abutment that
had been significantly undermined.

The placement of stone was to try to prevent
that from happening further. |

Q And there was, purshant to an agreement
reached by the PUC field conference?

A Yes, it was. |

Q Do you have any knowledgé about what
estimates we based our $50,000 estimate on to
perform these repalrs?

A Yes, I do.
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Q Can you enlighten us?

A Yes.

We had a field meeting at the site within the
past month in which we had viewed the site with
some of our construction people and'design people.
That was an amount that we had arrived at as a
result of that field meeting and the review of the
underwater inspection that was done by a
consultant.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have nothing further for
Mr. Herbert.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. POYNTER:

0 When you went for this most recent field
investigation, where were you working on the
prelininary estimate?

Did you observe whether or not the work you
had done placing the riprap had actually diverted
the watex?

A No.

I was unaware of the work at the timé of this
field meetingy.

I should add that I was unaware that it =-- I
was not completely familiar with the case at the

time, and I was not aware that that work had been
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| Q Is it fair to say that you are the

individual who was assigned within the Department
to now spearhead this event and’to get the
prelininary plans together and carry out the work?

A No.

Q Would you tell me who that would be?

A BAs far as the person ultimately
responsible for the preparation of the plans?

Q0 2and if it's more than one person, who is

responsible for the plan, and then, if you will,

who will be the foreman of the job?

A The preparation of'the plan will take
place in‘our unit by another manager in our unit
who is my counterpart. The work would ~~ wWe have
not decided at this point who will perform the
actual,work in the field, whether it will be a
contract project or have it done by the Department.

Q <Could I ask yoﬁ, what is your relationship
to this case now?

A I am in chargé of all bridge safety

- inspections, coordination of bridge maintenance

work. That's the extent as it relates to this
case.

Q So, someone who reports to you, then,
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actually does the bridge inspectionsg?

A Yes.

Q Do you do them, or do you have them -~

A We have two inspection teams that do them,
as well as our staff is supplemented by --

Q What determines whether or not a bridge is
on your list for inspection?

A As far as our inspections, we inspect
everything that affects a State road or is owned by
us.

Q Do you have any kind of categories? Do
you have priority, medium priority, low priority
inspections? Do you inspect some bridges more
often?

Describe to me basically how your
inspections --

A We are required by law to inspect all of
our structures at least once eavery two years.

If is a judgmeﬁt call as to shortening that
frequency, and generally we do inspect our weight-
restricted structures on a more frequent basis,
wﬁatever.

And every two years on any other structure
that we have determined that there is a problem

that warrants a more freguent inspection.
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Q Define for me what a weight-restricted
structure would be.

I assume that all bridges have a maximum
tonnage limit?

A That's true, but’a weight~réstricted
structure is something that's posted by siuns for
something less than the legal load.

Q And what is a legal load?

A Eighty thousand pounds in the Staté of
Pennsylvania. However, depending on your axle
configuration, it becomes much more complicated
than\that; depending on the axle configuration.

Q And what was the load restriction on this
bridge prior to the time the State,closed it?

‘A We had it posted in a three ton.

Q And you proposing to reopen it as a three

- ton?

A A three ton or gomething slightly higher,
possibly. We haVeﬁ‘t determined that amount yet.

¢ And at a three ton'limit,'precisely what

'daes that limit by way of vehicle? Does it limit

any passenger vehicles; does it limit only trucks
and buses, or things of larger capacity?
Can you describe for me approximately what --

A Basicaliy, a three ton limit, vou could
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run any small passenger vehicles across it, not
trucks. Pickup trucks, ves.

Basically, no loaded trucks. Automobiles are

fine.

Q In approaching this situation and
determining that you would reopen the bridge and

that you would require it be a certain load limit,

-did you do any traffic studies, as indicating that

a three or five ton would be appropriate?

A Do I personally do any traffic studies?

Q Did you, or anyone who reports to you, or
anyoné in your Department?

A No.

Q Could I ask then, why you arrived at this
specific load?

A We had previous analysié that indicated
that that's ali the structure would take.

Q Could you give me a little further
definition on that?

Your studies indicate that that's all it
could take. Can you tell me something specific
that that wouid be an indicatoxr?

A That rating was probably arrived at by the
deck -- the immediate structure that carries

vehicles.
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When the structure problems were determined,
that was what prompted the c¢losing.

Q Do you always do a subterranean, an
underwater inspection of the bridge? 1Is that a
normal process you would follow? Is that a normal
type of inspection?

A Yes, it is.

Q And do vou have people on staff that
actuélly do the diving? |

A No, we don't. - The extent is what
constitutes whether or not we get a'cdnsulﬁant
involved that can do the diving.

Q Is it fair to say that on most structures
that do have a subterranean area underwater, that
at least every two vears you do a dive?

A No, we are not required.

-Q imen‘could you tell me what would prompt
you to take the next step and do a dive?:

A We Qould have diving perforhea if we were
unable to do it by probing.
| Q I'm afraid you're going towxhave to
describe that for me.

A Probing, we have scouring poles, a long
rod is the best way to describe it, that can be

used to prod along the interface between the
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structure and the subsurface material.

O And I take it if it penetrates at all, you
would consider that a problem? |

A Not at all.

I mean if voids are noticed and that kind of
thihg and if the extent cannot be detérmined by the
proddihg itself ~--

Q Going back to your preliminary estimates,
to my knowledge there have been two engineering
studiés done on the structure for the State.

I think I can say between 1988 and now.

Which of those studies would you be relying
upon in arriving at your preliminary or final
estimate actually on what the cost of this repair
would be?

A Can I corréct a statement?

Q Yes, of course.

A There have been various consultant
invastigaﬁions performed. There has ohiy been one
underwater inspection, so to speak.

Q And what was the date of that one?

A Well, the date of the actual inspeétion -
we c¢an just leave it at October of '89.

Q That's fine.

¢ The field investigation occurred, and then




10
11
12

13

14

15
16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

|

preparation of the report.

Q And could you describe that for the record
and indicate which engineering firm was involved?

A  The engineéring firm's name is Pickering
Courté & Somerson, Incorporated {phonetic) in
Newton, Pennsylvania.

0 And have you been in contact with them
recently?

A Not related to this structure.

Q So in arriving at your preliminary plan,
yvou will not be asking them to update this report?

A No, we will not. ‘

MS. POYNTER: Question of counsel.

Will yvou be having someone testify who
réepresents -~

MS. D'ALFONSO: ©No, we will not.
BY MS. POYNTER: | |

Q I think Mr. Farrell may have already
ad&ressé& this, but just to make sure that we're
ali of the same understanding, do the Highway
Deparﬁment's records and Department of
Transportation's records in any way indicate when
the State road was constructéd, when the term
you‘re using, the deck for the highway, was built?

Is there anything in vour recordsg that

35
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construction?

A I don't believe so. I see nothingi

Q Has anyone within your Department
attempted to do a document check in a courthouselar
ahything along that line to check easement rights?

A Not éhat I'm aware of.

Backing up, when you say easement rights ~-

Q Presumably, this property at some point in
time was in ownership other than the State, and I'm
just WOndeﬁing if there's anything in the
Department files that would indicate that there was
a purchase of the land, thét there was some |
agreement for easement rights?

Bésically, if anyone has any information that
would lead to who has some kind of contact with
this bridge --

MS. DYALFONSO: To the best of my knowledge,
we d&n't have any of that informatiqn. I don't
believe a title search has been performed. I did
not ask for one to be performed.

What I can do is, if the Commission would
desire, I can inguire whether or not a title search
has‘been performed.

JUDGE NEMEC: Well, why don't you ask and you

36
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can share the information in a letter to everybody.
MS. D'ALFONSO: I will do that.
JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you.
- MS. POYNTER: I have no further questiohs at
this time.
JUDGE NEMEC: Law Bureau.
MR. SALAPA: Thank yau, Your Hohor.

CROSS~EXAMINATION

BY MR. SALAPA:

Q Mr. Herbert, would it be vour opinidn that
the arch portion of this bri&ge was actually
constructed separate and apaft from the roadway?

A I can't speak to that. I have nothing’

that would indicate, that would give me an opinion

one way or another as to how the entire structure

was built.
Q But it's possible that one part could have
prededédfthe other?
A That's possiblés
Q Are you aware that CSX did some work at
this particular crossing?
| A Yes, I am.
Q Just.briefly, what work did they do there?
A They did some work to one of the

wingwalls, and placed some gabion baskets, to the
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best of our records.

g And what they did was insufficient té
allow the Department to redpén the structure?

| A That's correct.

Q@ Why? Why was it inadequaté?

A The actual undermining that was found and
described in our underwater inspection was not
addreséed‘

Q Do you know, or would you have any way of

~ knowing, when this bridge deck was originally

constructed?

What was it -- what kind of weight load was
it desighed to carry?

’ A I have no idea,~bécause’we do not know as
to when it was constructed or have any plans
showing that.

MR. SALAPA: That's all I have, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC: Gabion baskets.

MR. HERBERT: Yes?

JUDGE NEMEC: What are they?

MR. HERBERT: They're a method that can be
used to construct a retaining wall. They're wiré,
nesh baskets that are filled with stone.

JUDGE NEMEC: Any more questions?

MS. POYNTER: Just one, if you don't mind.
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. POYNTER:

Q 1Is it unusual to have a situation where
you have nothing in ydur records thét indicates how
property was acgquired to place a road?

A My records, yes, because I have no records
pertéining to roadways. But I believe so.

. We're talking about around the beginning of
the century. There's been a lot of roads that the
State has acquired by --

Q So it could have been a Township road at
gome time?

’A ‘That's true.

Q0 Is that likely the reason that you don't

have any records in the State files, is that you

‘potentially or possibly took over a Township or

County road and then wouldn't have any records?
Is it likely? |
MS. D'ALFONSO: If cdunsei would desire, I
could address that in the letter.
MS. POYNTER: I would like that, yes.

EXAMINATION

BY JUDGE NEMEQ:
0 You've been there to the crossing, and

this is within the district that you're responsible
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for; is that correct?
A Yes.
| Q Now, this roadway generally runs north and
south, as best I can tell from your Exhibit 1.
Can you tell me what'structuresg if any,

exist north of the subject cross to the next

“intersection?

A No, I can't tell vou at this time without
reSearching. | ‘

Q And, likewise, you ¢an't tell_mé whatllies
to the‘south on either side of the rcadway to the
next intersection?

A That's true.

Q Is it a residential area, rural area,
industrialized area?

A I can't recall.

I know there is -- on the approaching roadway

'frbmATraffic Route 40 into this structure, which is

the southern end, there is a recreational area in
the -~

Q Township, County?

A I don't know as far as the ownershipyk

I've seen a baseball field, sbccer field;
possibly something like that,' » |

Q Have you had contact with either the
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County or Buffalo Township with regard to their
desire and need for this crdssing?

A No, I have not.

Q Would officials or residents of either the
County or the Township normally contact you or your
office if they had questions about this crossing?

A More than likely, ves.

Q@ Do you have ény record of any contact from
either the County or Township regarding this
crossing, say in the last two years?

A I don't believe so.

One of the other vehicles that they uée is as
was stated by Mr. Farreil, contacting their State
or local representative.

Q All right.

In addition to the reference to the State
Senator, who contacted your office? Have you had
contact with any other elected official, State,
County or local, other than Senator Barry Stoudt?

A Yés; we have.

Q Can you identify who those officials are?

A We had a contact by Representative Leo
Trish, Jr. (phonetic).

I don't believe there are any others.

Q And that's one contact from Representative

41
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Trish and one contact from Senator Stoudt?

A ©One from Representative Trish.  There may

‘"he more than one from Senator Stoudt.

Q Have you had any significant change in
terns of the number of contacts from aanody else,
you‘caﬁ include that in your letter, also.

| A I can't speak to phone conversations that
nay have éaken place.

Q Who could?

’Who would receive phone inguiries?

A Possibly our District Engineer.

JUDGE NEMEC: I have no additional gquestions.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have one follow up.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION

BY~MS; D*ALFONSO:

Q We talked about there being undermining to
a portion of the structure.

’What is the undermining? What's the name of
the structural feature? |

A The foundation.

Q The foundation.

What does the foundation support?

A The foundation would support béth the
roadway structure and the tunnel.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have nothing further.
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:,JUDGE NEMEC: Anything else?

MR. SALAPA: No.

JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you,’sir, yoﬁ're excused.

MS. D'ALFONSO: Your Honor, we also have
marked as Commonwealth Exhibit 2, the proof of
publication of today's hearing. |

| At this time I would move for the admission
of Commonwealth Exhibits 1 and 2.

JUDGE NEMEC: Any objection?

MS. POYNTER: No objections.

MR. SALAPA: No objection.

JUDGE NEMEC: Pennsylvania Department of
Trahsportation Exhibits 1 and 2 are admitted into
the reéord. |

MS. D'ALFONSO: Thank you.

We ﬁave no other witnesses, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC: CSX.

MS. POYNTER: I'd like to call Mr. Wayne
Martin, please. |

WAYNE MARTIN, called as a witness, having

-been previously sworn, was examined and testified

as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MS. POYNTER:

Q Will you state your full name, business
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address and current railroad responsibility for the
record?

A My name is Wayne J. Martin. My business
address is CSX Transportation, Engineering
Department, 722 Virginia Avenue, Rdom‘lﬂs,
Cumberland, Maryland 21502.

Q Give us a brief resume of four‘various
positions with the railroad company.

A I'm a project engineer., I have been a
project engineer since 1987, approximately.

Before that, I was an assistant project
engineer from 1978 when I started with thé railroad
until 1987.

Q Could you givé us‘your educational
background?

A I have a Bachelor of Science Degree in
¢ivil engineering from the University of
Pittsburgh.

Q Could you just describe briefly what the
séope of your duties are as a project engineer?

A Briefly, no, but I'll attempt.

Basically, I'm a coordinator for all railroad

and outside party projects. Outside parties would

be State, Federal, local.

I'm also ~- I also assist the Department from
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track structures and bridge and building
structures, and basically any other duty that I'm
assigned to do.

Q‘ Are you authorized by CSX to testify in
this hearing today?

A I am.

Q Are you personally familiar with the
location that we're talking about?

A Yes,~i am.

MS. POYNTER: Your Honor, we didn't have time

to circulate it, as required by the Commission's

Order.

We do have prepared an exhibit that has
answers to questibns 10 through 17 that we can
submit to have entered in the record as if
testified to.

' Is that acceptable, or we could read it into

the record.

BY MS. POYNTER:

’Q Mr. Martin, CSX has been requested to
suhmit'testimony as to the exact corporaté name of
the owners and of the operators of the line of
railroad’located at the subjeét c¢rossing, including

the number of tracks and the volume, class, and the

45
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approximate speed of all traing operated daily
thereon, and whether any significant changes to
such operations are contemplated in the foresegable
future.

A Part A to the queétion is owners and
operators.

The owner and operator is CSX Transportation,
Inc., Baltimore Division-W&P Subdivision.

Part B to the guestion is the number of
tracks; one. |

The volume of train traffic is zero trains
per day.

The c¢lass of traffic is N/A existing. It's
not existing. There is no train traffic. But it's
propdsed to be freight only.

The approximate train speed at this time is

non-existent, but it's proposed 25 miles per hour.

These proposals are based on the potential
for a significant increase in coal train traffic
{(freight only), contemplated within the next three
years, more or less, as Pennsylvania Coal is
planned to be mined, loaded and shipped over this
line from Taylorstown, Pennsylvania, to the
sﬁrrounding area, to Pittgburgh, Peunnsylvania, then

gast or west, as determined.
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CSX hasg also been instructed to describe the

general type of existing structure, number of

‘spans, principal dimensions, and the general

physical condition thereof.

A We broke that gquestion doWn into four
parts, A, B, €, D.

| I'd l1ike to answer Parts A, B and C, and

defer Part D.

MS. POYNTER: One of my other witnesses will
he éddressing'SOme of these gquestions.

MR. MARTIN: Part A to the question is type
of existing structure.

The railtoad considers it to be Bridge 161,
which is a concrete arch.

Part B to the gquestion 1s the number of
spans, one.

~Part € of the question is principal

“dimensions,

It's approximately 30 feet high by 90 feet
long, a tangent structure which c¢rosses over Staté
Route 3009 and Buffalo Creek.

Part D, I will defer.

Q csx has been asked to state the
approximate date of construction of the existiné

structure and any significant changes that have

47
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been made to the structure in the past which have
affected or altered the structure.

AL To the best of our records, the date of

construction of the existing structure was built in.

1907, and any significant structure changes, to the
best of our knowledge, there have been none.

Q CSX has been asked to state its piesent
obligation with respect to the maintenance of
existingkstructure.

A CsX's Bridge and Building'Debartment of
the Baltimore Division have been inspecting the
concrete arch which supports the railroad above.

The railroad at the present time is out of

gervice.

Q C€SX has been asked to state the nature and
type, extent, date, cost, and any other pertinent
spécific details aé to any recorded substantial
itém‘of maintenance and/or repalr performed on the
eﬁiéting structure by the railroad or its
gontractor.

A I'd like to defer that question.

Q CsX has been further requested to state
whether the existing crossing is adequate for fhe
convenience and safety of the public, or should be

altered, reliabilitated or demolished and if so,
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submit testimony regarding the general nature and
extent of all work or changes, if any, which the

railroad deems advisable to provide a safe and

convenient crossing at this location.

A In regard to the existing foadway's width
and vertical clearance through.the conciete arch,
CSX feels that the existing structure’is adegquate.

Referring to the conveniénce and safety of

the public, CSX feels that it is not qualified to

make that judgmentkas it seems to be a highway

traffic and safety guestion, not a railroadv
question.

Part B to the question is CSX feels that the
existing érossing does not need'to be altered or
demolished, but may need some rehabilitation work,
the details of which should be addressed by
PenﬁBOT, as it was the party that contacted CSX

regarding the existing problem through the

,PennsYlvania Public Utility Commission in 1988.

Q CSX has been asked to state whether it
will agree to prepare any inspection report, plans,
or‘cost/estimates as may be required for any work
necessary or gdvisable at this location.

MS. POYNTER: Your Honor, while we haven't

answered this question since the State has
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indicated that it is determined it will make these
estimates, I see no reason to put our answer on the
record.

JUDGE NEMEC: All ri§ht.

RY MS. POYNTER:

Q CSX has also been asked to submit
testimony as to what portion, if any, of any
construction work that it will agree to perforn,
and,what‘portion, if any, of the cost of same and
future maintenance that it will agree to bear. And
the portion, if any, of said work and cost thereof
which should be performed and borne by each of the
other parties hereto.

The response should be specific as to the
percentage of éllécation suggested, and include the
reasons for such allccation.

A Part A to the question, €SX is requestihg
that 1t bhe required to perform none of the propased
construction work on the roadway surface and the
subgtructure for the reasons stated below.

Part B to the question, CSX is requesting
that none of the construction costs or any future
maintenance responsibilities be placed on it
because the existing roadway sﬁructure and the

regquested repairs. that are said to be needed by
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- PennDOT are for the benefit of the motoring publie

and not CS8X.

MS. POYNTER: (CSX feels,that it's necessary
to put kind of a chronological 1istingkof events on
the record on how we got to peint A, which‘
apparently started in November of 1988 té point B,
which is today.

BY MS. POYNTER:

Q Mr. Martin, you have before you a set of
documents, and I'm going to ask you to briefly
describe each and give the date of each.

I1f you would, just go through those
documents.

‘We are fully prepared to make COpies of tﬁese
and make them part of the récord, if that's
requireq.

Unfortunately, I did not have them available’
to me until today, so I could not do so.

But for at least the first approach to this,

we're going to describe them and walk through

. things.

A The first document that I have is a
document that was given to myself as the PUC field
conference of November 3, 1988, and it is a

document prepared by Macon Engineering Company
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{phonetic), regérding State Route 3009 over Buffalo
Creek. It was prepared for the Pennsylvania
Department of Transportation. The date submitted
is August 9, 1988, by Mr. Atello V. Macon.

And I assume by what was told at the meeting,
that it was involving what work needed to be done,
or the actual existing condition of the structure
at that point in time.

And it involved some xeroxes of pictures
takén on both sides of the structure and the bridge
inspection report.

Basically, that is what it was.

The second one I have is my field notes taken
November 3, 1988 at the field meeting thatkwe had
betweén the Pennsylvania PUC, PennDOT and C€8X
Transportation.

@ Could you list all the attendees at that
meeting? .

A The attendees were Mr. Robert Impedo
(phonetic) from PennDOT, Mr. Dave Fischer from
Pennsylvania PUC, Mr. John D. Crowd (phonetic) from

PennDOT, Mr. Dave Taubken from CSX Transportation,

Mr. Louis J. Rucci {phonetic) from PennDOT, Mr.

Maurice C. Snowden from PennDOT.

The meeting involved work that PennDOT felt
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- needed to be done at this structutre.

We discussed the southeast wingwall being
collapsed and the footer rolled over.

To make a comment, that our directions when I

say southeast and northwest, is different £from

PenndOT, because we use railroad direction beiny
east of Pittsburgh and west ~-- and natural due
north or south.

Also, we talked about the temporary repairs

of the footers and three eye-beams that suppott the

’roadway structure by PennDOT to be resupported and

that PennDOT and the railroad are trying to wbrk
out the situation themselves without the
Pennsylvania PUC involvement.

And PennDOT at that time stated that they
were looking to raise the bridge load to possibly a
9~ton, two-axle, 17-ton combination axle loading.
And we basically agreed at that meeting that the
problem seemed to be the southeast wingwall and the
area right near the southeast wingwall needed to be
addressed and~repaired,‘that we needed to have some

riprap placed by PennDOT on the embankment leading

i up to the structure, where the stream was actually

eroding away the ground, causing the water to be

‘able to hit that structure and cause more‘damage.
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And at the field conference, PennDOT said
that they would direct information to Mr. Dale
Houchin (phonetic) and a copy to my office in
Cumberland with this information.

Mr. Houchin would contact Jacksonville once
information is sent to the railrcad‘from PennDOT
for doing designkand construction of these repairs.

And then of course I stated that PennDOT put
riprap on the edge of the southwest bank of the
creek to help with the existing erosion.

The next piece of information I have is a
letter dated February 6, 1989 from the Commonwealth

of Pennsylvania, Department of Transportation to

'Mr, Dale Houchin, Director of Public Projects and

Contracts with CSX Transportation, Inc.,
Jacksonville, Florida, and it refers to a letter
from PennDOT dated September 16, 1988 and the
subseqgquent informal field investigation of November
3, 1988 at the subject crossing.

It talks about myself, Wayne Martin,
attending and Dave Taubken attending from CSX, and
basically it says our concern at the c¢rossing is
focused ét the northeast‘corner of the northerly
abutment.

The footing of the abutment has been
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unndermined and rotated, leaving the encased high

beam slab to act as a ¢cantilever support for a

- vital portion of the roadway deck.

Also, the remaining wall has c¢racked
approximately ten feet from the tip’due'to the~1oss
of support.

And it goes on to say that whét we had were,
what we were going to do, et cetera.

The final also states that a PUC Ordexr does
not exist assigning maintenance responsibility ét
the crossing.

It appears that the structure was built by’
the railroad in 1907 to support its embankment. We
regquest that CS8X -~ and reconstruct the abufment
wall to support the roadway deck at a five ton load
1imit, and it talks about the current posting of
three tons, which they'd like to have upgraded to
five tons, if the proper repalilrs are performed.

k The next item I have is a Second engineering
report that I assume was given to PennDOT. It says
the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation,
District 12, underwater bridge inspection,.state'
Route 3009 over branch of Buffalo Creek in Buffalo
Township, Washington County.

"Q Is there any indication how that document
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came to be in our files? Was there any cover
letter accompanying it that you're aware of?
A Not that I'm aware of, no.

As a matter of fact;, I think it was sent

Q As far as you know, from file matérials

that we've been able to search, there was no

specific cover letter to that indicgting Qhat,
significance that document has?

A Not that I could f£ind, and the date of
this document is October 12, 1989.

I didn't really go into detail. It was
submitted by Pickering, Courts & Somerson. T
haven't really read it, but I basically assumed it
was dn underwater inspection and the same type of
situation, what work needs to be done at the bridge
structure.

MS. POYNTER: At this point, Your Honor, you
might want to go off the record, if you're curious
about what the configuration is here;’What this
looks like.

There are some pictures.

JUDGE NEMEC: I'll look at that later.

MS. POYNTER: All right.

JUDGE NEMEC: Go ahead.
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MR. MARTIN: The next piece of information T
have is a letter written to a Mr. William E. Moyer,
Professional Engineer, Chief Engineer, with the
Highway Administration, fraﬁsportation and Safety
in Harrisbufg from CSX Trahsportation, Mr. H.
Cliarkson (phonetic), dated April 27, 1990.

The subject of the letter is Taylorstown, DA,
State Route 3009, TOT Crossing 145626A, and it
basgically séys, Dear Mr. HMoyer, referring to your
March 15, 1990 letter, our repairs were completed
on December 20, 1989.

Pennsylvania Department of Transportation
still must rechannel stream, as agreed to at PUC

site meeting prior to repairs. This rechanneling

will complete future undermining. Please advise

PenﬁDQT work has been completed. Very truly
yours, --

MS. D'ALFONSO: Your Honor, before we go ény
further, I'm going to object to the continuing
recitation bf what is in Mr. Martin's file. I
don't see the relevancy of this.

If there is a specific question ag to what
CSX has done,‘that‘s fine, but it appears that
we're going through Mr. Martin's file page by page.

JUDGE NEMEC: All right.
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This is offered for the purpose of giving a
chronology and how we've arrived at the point we're
at today.

I'm going to overrule the objection.

You may continue. |

MR. MARTIN: The next piece of information I
have is a letter dated November 8, 1990 from Mr.
Leo J. Trish; House of Representatives,
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Harrisburg, and it
was written to me and it basically said it was
brought to his attention that -- needs to be

repaired, so Legislative Route 3009170 can be

E reopened.

Later on in November, November 27, 1990, I
received a phone call from Mr. Dave Fischer with
the Pennsylvania PUC in regard to this letter
Writtén from a State Senator about the roadway

still being closed through the underpass, and I

“told Mr. Fischer that I would have to talk to Dave

Taubken, Building Supervisor of Connellsville, and
he had told me that the railroad repairs had been
completed.

I said to verify what I was saying was true,
I would call Mr. Taubken up again and make sure and

then c¢all Mr. Fischer back.
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So 1 talkéd to Dave Taubken on the phone the
same day and he told me that he had prepared the
tﬁree eye-beams and he had installed 27 yards of
concrete and he had installed gabion baskets to
protect the footers.

And this work was completed on 12/20/89 and
the as-built plan was made up in Jacksonville
12/20/89. I did call Mr. Fischer back and gave hinm
this information. |

The next piece of information I have is a
letter to Mr. William O'Malley {phonetic), P.E.,
District Engineer for Pennsylvania Department of
Transportation, District 12, dated December 11,
1991. It is to the attention of Mr. John Krubrack
(phonetic), Engineer. 1It's over Mr. Ramsey's
gignature, Mr. M.D. Ramsey, who is the Division
Manager for C8X, Baltimore Division, but I wrote
the letter.

it basically states to Mr. O'Malley that in
response to inguiries from the Bennsylvanié PUC and
thé Pennsylvania House oOf Representativeé and
PennDPOT directed to CSX on the status of thié

crossing, CSX is writing to reaffirm that the work

‘required has been completed for quite some time and

we verbally related to PennDOT by €C8X on different
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occasions. And, basically, I restated that the
work done on 12/20/89 was completed, with the as-

built being done by Jacksonville, Florida's Chief

Engineer's office on 12/21/89.

That was basically the end of that letter,

The next letter I have is a létter from the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of |
Pennsylvania dated January 13, 1992 to Mr. Ramsey,
Divisiﬁn Engineer with €SX, and it states
basically, reference is made to your December 11,
1991 letter concerning the repair work required of
CSX béing completed on December 20, 1989.

It basically says repairs made to date have
not permitted the Department to reopen the
structure for even a three ton load limit, as noted
at the PUC field conference held NoveMber 3, 1988.
SY MS. POYNTER:

Q Mr. Martin, is this the first ﬁime in your
file that there's any indication that the work that
CS5X has agreed to do and has done is not adequate
for the purpose -~

A It is.

Then it goes on to just state some additional
things about the -- and it savs afterkthe field

conference the Department's underwater inspection
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revealed serious undermining at the east and west
abutments.

0 And what was the date of that letter,

again?

A January 13, 1992.

The last piece of information I have in my
file is a second field conference that was held at
the crossing on April 29, 1992. The attendees were
Mr. Louis J. Rucci, bridge inspector with PennDOT,

Distriet 12, Mr. Dave Fischer, civil engineer with

" the Pennsylvania PUC, Mr. Hank Farrell, the

- Pennsylvania Department of Tramsportation in

Harrisburg, Mr. John Crowd, Grade Crossing Liaison
with the Pennsylvania TOT, Mr. Ken Sharp, Grade
Crossing Liaison, Pennsylvania TOT, and Mr. Seifus
Modnts {(phonetic), and also a Mr. Forrest -- it
looks like Clark, but I can't really say for sure,
but‘they were with Buffalo Township.

At that meeting PennDOT expressed that the
work that was déne by the railroad was not
satisfactory to open up the rocad and the railroad
felt that thekwork we did we felt was satisfactory,
but we're not highway engineers and don't claim ﬁo
be, and we couldn't come to an agreement on what

needed to be done or what didn't need to be done.
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So it was decided to solve this situation
that the PUC would set this crossing up for a
hearing in the Fall of 1992, per PennDOT's redquest
at that field meeting.

At the‘field meeting, PennbDOT was looking to
put the’roadWay bridge 6n a briddge bill, but would
not commit to any detaiis until CSXT gave an exact
status of the line subdivision at this bridge
location.

PennDOT also wanted the scouring adjacent to
thé bridge sidewalls fixed and the spalling in the
tunnel repaired prior to the opening up of the
bridge. PennDOT feels that as the bridge is
unsafe, including the three ton weight limit and
nust keep it c¢losed, we were given an;éstimated
cost of repairs to the walls by PennDOT's
consultants of $120,000 to repair the scouring
problen.

They also asked‘that c8Xx needed‘to come up
with the cost to fix the spalling in the tunnel.

And that was basically the gist of the that
field meeting.

And then the next step is that of ccursé~
we're in this hearing today.

A That's correct.
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Q Now, during that interim period, did you

‘do any further -- give any further consideration or

discuss internally whether or not -- we being CSX,
felt that we had exerted our best effort to comply
With the request in the form of repairs that we did
or completed oﬁ December 20, 1988;

A I thought what we had done was

satisfactory, but I am not a bridge engineer. 8o I

 couldn't say what we did was satisfactory and what

was not.

Q0 Are there any comparable situations to the
one that Ve have before us today that you could usé
as an example of comparable handling of a highway-
related situation where we did not take on the
responsibility of a highway engineer,‘and where
the ==~

MS. D'ALFONSO: Your Honor, I'm going to
objecf at this point to this structure.

JUDGE NEMEC: What's the relevancy of the
guestion?

MS. POYNTER: Basically, establishing that
CsX has not been held acecountable for highway
structures in the past.

JUDGE NEMEC: ©Not held accountable for repair

responsgibility, or for the designing, or
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redesigning?
MS. POYNTER:
Honor.‘
JUDGE NEMEC:
"MS. POYNTER:
JUDGE NEMEC:
that.
Sustaiﬁed.
MS. POYNTER:

JUDGE NEMEC:

MS. POYNTER: No, Your Honor. I think that's

Repair or maintenance, Your
Financially responsible?

That's right.

I don't see the relevance of

Thank vyou.

~Any other questiong?

all I have for this witness at this time.

JUDGE NEMEC:

~MS. D'ALFONSO:

You may ¢ross.

© Tharnk yvou.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

P Mr. Martin, you testified that vour file

indicates that the first contact yvou had with the

Department saying the repairs were not satisfactory

was in January of 1992.

A That's torrect.

Q Would you have a record of all telephone

I calls that would have been made to CSX and all

dorrespondence made to CSX regarding this?

A No.
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Q So it's possible that CSX may have been
contacted via people other than yourself, and that
the repairs were not satisfactory’to -

A It is possible, yves.

Q Has CSX inspected the foundation?

A I can't answer that. I'm going to have to
defer that question.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have nothing further for
Mr. Martin.

Thank you.

JUDGE NEMEC: Law Bureau.

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SALAPA:

Q Mr"Martin, would it be your -- Mr.
Martin, based on the records that you have, would’
it be fair to infer that both the bridge structure
and the rvadway woﬁld have been built at the sanme
time?

A I can't answer that because I'm not sure.

Q, CS¥'s position is that additional work

that the Department wants to do at this time is

unnecessary; is that a fair statement of your

position?
A No, I couldn't say it was unnecessary; I

just felt that CsX feels that the work that needs
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to be done is for the benefit of the’motoring
public¢ to support the roadway structure.

Q But not necessarily for the support of the
railroad structure, all right.

MR. SALAPA: Thank you.

EXAMINATION
BY JUDGE NEMEC:

Q B8ir, you've been there, you've c¢onducted
an indepth study of the structure. Ih addition to
the railroad tracks and CSX and utilities, are you
aware of any other facilities that have utilities
there?

A The only utility -- I think this wasg an
electric line or phone line. That runs over the
tracks. It's one of them that runs either -- just
to the west of the structure itself, but it should
not be «- it does not affect the structure for the
railioad. |

Q Not connected to the Structure?

A That's correct.

Q Either portion of the structure?

A That's correct.

Q I just noticed the GTE on the service
list.

A It's a telephone line.
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JUDGE NEMEC: I have no additional guestions.

MS. D'ALFONSO: Just one further guestion.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

Q Don't you agreée that this same foundation
supports the roadway as supports the arch?

A Yes.

Q It's the same foundation?

A Yes, it's the same foundation.

JUDGE NEMEC: Anything else?

MS. POYNTER: No.

JUDGE NEMEC: Thank you, sir. You're
eXcuéed.

~Call your next witness.

D.T. TAUBKEN, called as a witness, having
been previously, sworn, was examined and testified
as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. POYNTER:

Q State your full name and business address
for the record, please. |

AA,David T. Taubken, €SX Traﬁsportation, P&B
Supervisor, 700 West Gibson Avenue, Connellsvilie,
PA. |

Q Did you give yout title, your current
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title?

A P&B Supervisor.

Q Could you describe what your duties are
within the job?

A I do the bridge inspections and take care
of the maintenance. 1I've got gangs of men that I
direct where they go.

Q@ Are you familiar with, and are you
responsible for, the structure before this
Commission?

A I am familiar with it, and the
responsibility wculd be kind of an internal thihg
right now, since the tracks are out of service.

Q For while the tracks are out, it stills

 ca11s for --

; A  Yes.

Q On the questions that the Commission
directed to us, could you refer to those, please,
and fill in the respounses that are wifhin your area
of responsibility?

A I believe that one question was 11D.

Mr. Martin didn't answer it.

The general structure condition, it says it's

good, a couple cracks inside the arch, sidewalls.

No movement noted in the last six vears. Spalling
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concrete at all construction joints inside the
arch., Minor spalling. |

Q Now, were you responsible fof this
territory or this area or the specific bridge at
the time that the construction repairs were made,
were ccmpieted on December 20, 19887

A Yes, I was.

Q Could you describe in detail what vou were

instructed to do, or perhaps better, what you

- agreed with the Pennsylvania Department of

Transportation to do and what you d4id?
A At the time of the site meeting which I

believe was 1988, November, I forget the date of it

with the PUC} Wayne Martin and I and PennDOT, our

biggest concern and their biggest concern was the
southeast abutment and wingwall, which I did agree
with it.

And in November, around November 15, *88, I
started to work on that area. I did concrete
repair to the southeast abutment and I completed
them December of f89 at a cost of $30,570. And
installed roof bolts to the wingwall that had full
length crack which looked as if it had settled
because of the abutment failure.

Two of the roof bolts were 12 feet long and
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two of them were 8 feet long, put in with a resin,
kind of like a glue.

And then the crack was filled with grout. I
installed gabion baskets on the back side of the
wingwall that we had constructed after we had
poured the 27 yards of concrete to help so we
wouldn't have any more erosion because of the way
the ¢reek would come down and bank off the
retaining wall and come over right toward this
southeast corner.

- And I installed some gabion baskets in the

~ bed of;the c¢reek -and the front of the abutment to

help so no more undermining would happen.

And I had the baskets in where you could walk
right inside the culvert itself at the time, -and
there was some undermining in that area.

80 the only way that I could gét to it is I
got behind the wingwall by hand, of course. I had
seven men digging by hand behind the wihgwall in
order to get to this undermining of the footer.

We did accomplish that and put in
approximately 20 bags of cement and then
backfilled.

0 Have yvou had cccasion to inspect your work

since you put it in in December of '88 (sic)7?
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A Yes, I have.

JUDGE NEMEC: Decenmber of '89.

MS. POYNTER: Excuse me. Thank you.

MR. TAUBKEN: December of '89.

I do have bridge inspection reports from back
in '87 through '92; February of '92 is the last I

inspected it officially.

BY MS. POYNTER:

Q What did you find the condition of the

repairs to be today?

A The condition of our repairs are great. I

don't see where it would be any problem. They are
supporting the beams that weren't supported before,
and we are supporting the roadway.

MS. POYNTER: Your Honor, we have some before
and after pictures of this, but I always find that
photocopying is meaningless, because you really
can't see them.

We will be pleaséd, if there's no objection,
to put one before and one after photograph in thek
record, and we will make photocopies, although they
really don't show. 1If you want them in the record.

JUDGE NEMEC: That's your decision whether
you want to offer them or not.

MS. POYNTER: I would like to offer two, if I
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could take those out.
JUDGE NEMEC: <You can submit them later, if
you wish.

M8. POYNTER: I'll attempt then to have these

‘reproduced through some photographidfmeans and

entered.

(&n off~the-record discussion was held.)

MS. POYNTER: I will then submit a late filed
exhibit showing one before and one after photograph
of the work that was accomplished at this site by
CSXT:. | |

JUDGE NEMEC: You may do so, subject to any
later objections by counsel for the parties which
have to deal with them at the time they're raised.

MS. POYNTER: I have no further gquestions of
thisg witness at this point.

CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. D'ALFONSO: ’

Q Mr. Taubken, are iou familiar with the

i989 study, the underwater study?

A I'm familiar with it now. I did not have

~

this at the time of our meeting in '88, and as far

as IVWas concerned, this was the only thing that I

had to really get out and do.

Q Well, vou wouldn't have that in '88
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because that's an '89 study, right?

A Right, right. That's whét I meant, is
'89. I got the ~- the work I did was in December
of '89. This was October of '88, but I did not
receive this particular inspection uﬁtil after 1
had already done this other work.

Q Did Cs8X address everything that was
mentioned in that underwater report, to the best of
your knowledge?

A No, they did not, but CS8X felt that the

undermining for a five ton load limit would not

"bother the structure at that time, and we had an

agreement we wanted to put the five ton load limit

‘back in and felt it was safe.

MS. D'ALFONSO: May I see the photos that you

intend to offer?

MS. POYNTER: (Hands photographs.}
BY MS. D'ALFONSO;

0 Now, when was the last time you were at

- “the site?

A Yesterdavy.

Q Yesterday.

Would you agree with me that the problem goes
much further than what you can see in these

pictures? That they go through to the other side?
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A That's a possibility, but the undermining
came in from this créck and the wingwall
(indicating), this area, was all completed.
| That's what I'm saving. We dug in behind
this wingwall all the way down, filled it in from
the back side.

Q But it wouldn't surprise you if this
prablem was much more --

| A Not the way the water was coming into that
thing. The creek needed rechanneled to shoot the
water straight in. The problem was the water was
bouncing off of here, just bouncing back and forth
throughout this thing, scouring out the bottom.

Q Have you ever inspected the foundation?

A No, I haven't..

MS. D'ALFONSO: May I have a moment, Your
Honor?

JUDGE NEMEC: Yes.

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

Q And it‘s true at this time there‘are no
trains operating at this structure; this crossing?

A No trains.

Q In response to your answer to question

#11, upon what visit was that determination based,

the general structure condition?
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A Well, the last official one was an
ingpection done on February 27, '92.
| Q And when ydu were there vesterday?
A It was just a wvisual -- I do that a lot.
If I'm in the area, which I was in the area with
other business, whenever I'm in an area, :I"ll-visit
the site whenever I'm in the area.

Q¢ And what vou saw yesterday is consistent

- with the February report?

A Yes.

MS. D'ALFONSO: I have ﬁothing furthef for
Mr. Taubken.

Thank you,

CROSS-~-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SALAPA:

Q What work that CS8X did not do is spelled
bdt in thisbreport, if you could elaborate a little
bit?

A VWell, somé undermining at different
locations of the full -~ not fﬁll length, but some
undermining of the -=

Q¢ And would that have.béen élong the same
side of the structure where you did your repair
work, or are we talking the other side?:

A. The other side.
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Q0 The other side. The opposite site.
Your repair amount, it's $30,570.

Igs that for all the repairs you did,yar just

_the concrete work, oY --

A I've got a breakdown here. There was 27

vards of concrete, 12 gabion baskets, gabion and

~rocek is what we call it, to £ill the baskets,

sacrete, roof bolts, resin, gféut, and I had labor.
The total cost was $27,667, and the material was
$3,203.

Q@ Is CSX seeking any reimbursement for any
portion of that that they've already put out?

A I can't ansWer that; I don't know.

MS. POYNTER: I can, ves.

MR. SATAPA: And that's -- all right.

 BY MR. SALAPA:

Q@ When you talk about this concrete work,
was that concrete work done in order to support the
beams that hold the roadway?

A Yes.

Q And that was done satisfactorily, in your
estimation? |

A Oh, yes. I put a train on that.

Q Regarding these roof bolts, I'm a little

bit confused.
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What, exactly, did you do with those? What
were thev there to support? |

A This was to put a wingwall back together.
It would be easier to show you a picture of it. I
had a crack in the wingwall. We put more or less
what we call a toénail into the good concrete, just
hdld that big chunk of concrete togsther.

Q So that it wouldn't fall away further from
the main structure?

A Right. It can't fall away unless a big
undermining happens.k

Q Would it be possible for €C8X to provide
copies for the parties of the as-built plans to
show exactly what work was done?

A Well, the as-built was more or less a
skétch that I had sent down to Jacksonville with
some measurements on them.

Now; whether the design people down there
drew it up real nice, I don't know if they did.

M5. POYNTER: 1It's certainly possible, yes;
obviously.

MR. SALAPA: I think it would be helpful if

it would be made available.

That's all I have, Your Honor.

EXAMINATION
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'BY JUDGE NEMEC:

Q Spalling that's referenced in one of the

reports within the tunnel itself, the roof of the

‘tunnel, what's your opinion as to that as a problem

for traffic on the highway?

A It's just minor spalling as far as I'm

eoncerned .

Q What's involved in repairing that?

A That would be bringing a tunnel force in
there and doing a lot of chipping of old concrete
and wiring, what we c¢all wiring shotgun.

Q Any idea of how much time that would take
and expense?

A Not right now. It might take a couple
weéks.

Q A couple weeks to do it?

A Yes, if I could ever get them. That's an
internal thing. |

Q ‘ﬁow, you're familiar wifh the area. You
were there yesterday? |

A Yes.

Q North of this crossing to the next highway

intersection, what's there?

A North, I guess that's going all the way

through.
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@ It can't be more than a half mile or so.

A All right.

Generally, I never go through it. I went
through it years ago. I'm likely to remember just
swinging up around to get to this 227.

Q You haven't been there recently? You came
in from’the south yésterﬂay?

A Yes.

kQ What did yvou see yeéterday in terms of
from the last intersection north to the subject
crossing?

A Well, there's a road that comes off of

that right before this, temporary lock or

“gomething, whatever it is. There was a little

ballfield down to the right side of it. Then
theré‘s a couple houses up to the left side of the
structure.

0 S0 two residents.

No commercial buildings; no industrial
buil@ings?

A No, it's kind of out in the wilderness.

Q Described as a rural setting?

A Uh-huh (indicating affirmatively.)’

Q Any commercial enterprises at this

intersection south of the subject crossing?
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A No.

Swimming éaol. That's out on Route 40,
though. |

T Q Well, I wasn 't referring to Route 40, k3

was referring to the next intersection where the
road comes =~- would'be the intersection with
Township Route T-439.

A 489.

No, that's a real little dirt road type of
thing; gravel road.

Q T~489’s a dirt road?

A Yeah. I know vesterday it had fresh

 gravel on it.

Q Now, the reportkthat you're referring to
with the photograph, what report is that?

A October of 1989.

Q That's the so-called underw&fer report?

A Yes, |

Q Now, you had additional photographs that

wvere taken after you'd done your work?

A Yes,

Q Is that correct?
: A Matter of fact, I have dated ?/12/90,
50 == |

Q Did vou take any photographs?
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A Yes, I did.
‘That was almost a vear later. I came back
and took photographs.
| JUDGE NEMEC: I have no additional gquestions.

MS. POYNTER: I have one additional thing.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. POYNTER: |

0 You were gquestioned about the cracking in
the tunnel. |

Is the defects that are noted there, are
those strugtural or cosmetié?

A Well, they could be structural,'bﬁt
nothing real recent. I mean these things could
have been there for 40 years, these cracks.
Concrete is going to crack. |

MS. POYNTER: That's all I have, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC: Any other gquestions?

MR. SALAPA: ©No, Your Honor.

~JUDGE NEMEC: - Thank You,’sir, you‘ré excused.

Any other witnesses?

MS. POYNTER: No, I have no other witnesses.

I would like to ask a guestion at this point.

I was not formally aware of it. I think
there was some discussion just conversationally

about possibly having allocation of cost discussed
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Is that pért of the record we are building
today, or is that for a later hearing?

JUDGE NEMEC: I haven't heard any -~ I think
we better make some decisions regarding what's
going to be done here.

T think that's probably the most reasonable
approach. I think a lot of things are still up in
the air.

50 the answer to your questioh is cost of
allocation Qill be handled later.

MS. POYNTER: Thank you.

JUDGE NEMEC: But it's certainly pertinent to

~ know what CSX has expended to date in repairs.

¥or that reason, I think that you should
submit as’a late filed exhibits, a copy of the
estimate that vour witness reféﬁenced and has in
his possession, the photograph you intend to offer
and the as-~built plans you indicate you would look
for. | | |
MS. POYNTER: Yes.

JUDGE NEMEC: For DOT's part, I think you

- should prepare an exhibit with the underwatcer

report.

I don't know that you -- since CSX is going
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to do the photographs, I don't know if you -- but
textural information should be supplied as an
exhibit so that we have that.

MS. D'ALFONSO: Your Honor, to that end, the
Department has also incurred costs relative to ==
and we Wish to be given the same opportunity as to
costsg already in¢urred.

JUDGE NEMEC: Fine.

MS. D'ALFONSO: Thank you.

JUDGE NEMEC: I don't have any problem with
that. | |

Commission.

MR. SALAPA: thank vou, Your Honor.

I'd l1ike to call Mr; Fischer.

DAVE FISCHER, called asra witness, having
been previously sworn, was examined and testified
as follows: |

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. SALAPA:

Q Would you please state your name for the
recoxrd? |

A My name is David A. Fischer. That's
F~I-8-C~H-E~R. |

Q BAnd how are you employed, Mr. Fischer?

A I'm employed as a civil enginéer with the
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Bureau of Safety & Compliance, Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission.

0 How long have vou been employed in that
capacity? o

A Approximately 19 years.

Q0 And what are your duties in that‘position?

A I act as aﬁ engineering représentative of
the Commission cdncerning the design, construction
and rehabilitation and safety in matters of all
rail highway c¢rossings throughout this State.

Q And are you a 1i¢ensed professional
engineer?

A Yes.

Q Are you authorized to testify today oﬁf
behalf of the Bureau of Safety & Compliance?

A Yes.

Q And vou're familiar with thé structure?

A Yes, I an.

Q0 When was the last time you visited the

site of this crossing?

A April 29, '92 would be the last official
PUC field conference.

Q Did you research Commission records

regarding the crossing?

A Yes.

B84
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Q Did you £ind any prior Commission Orders
regarding this crossing at all?

| A No.

0 At vour last field meeting, then, you saw
the work that was performed by CSX at the crossing?

A Yes. |

Q And you've also had an . opportunity to
review some of the studies andkinspection reports
that the Department has done over the past several
years? |

A Yes.

'Q Based on the work that you saw done at the
c¢rossing, and the review of the inspection reports
done by the Department, could this bridge be
reopened to traffic without additional work?

A I would have to answer that hesitantly
without seeing the as-built plans‘oé‘exactly what
happened.

CSX repairs, I cannot actually make a

statement there as to whether it could be reopened

for traffic.

0 Could the additional work that the
Department has outlined here erase any kind of

doubt that you had in terms of what needs to be

- done?
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'A Once agaih, without having seen their
final plans, IT'm not going tQ -~ I can't exadtly
gay one hundred percent sure, but if they address
the stream scour as they propose to, I think that
should adeguately take care,df the problen.

What they said is betﬁeen thé three and five
ton weight restriction.

Q And you think that the work they've
outlined here today would be Satisfactory, assuming
that the plans reflect that?

A Right.

Q Other than this work that the Department
proposés to do, whatAother steps‘wouid you
reéommenﬁ‘the Commission take regarding this
particular crossing?

‘A Well, one inspection report and being at

the site, I know that either end b£ the structure

there's a steel railing. I would suggest that this
could be replaced by a modern guiderail to protect
automobiles from going off the road into the
stream.
, | . |

Without having seen exactly what PennDOT has
planned, I can't comment any further.

Q@ Would it be advisable for the Commission

to assign some kind of maintenance responsibility
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1 to this structure?

5 i At least on an interim basis, yes.

? The problem vou have with the stream is flash
4 floods can come through and change the picture

sii overnight, literally. So at least on an intérim

6 | basis a definite maintenance responsgibility should

be assigned.

Q@ On a structure of this kind, would you
recommend some kind of shared maintenance
résponsibility, or between either of the parties?

A If you're referring to if something

happened to this section of the structure as

vqpposed to something happening that section of the
14 || structure, it's toﬁgh with this construction to do
15 || that, because it's hard to split apart what is -~
{ 16,i hold up the railroad embankment, or what holds up
L%-_ :," .kﬁ the highway.
i | }13 ’ So actual work delineaficn is hard. A
R i splitting up or percentagé of costs incurred,by oneg
20 | party or the other would be easier.
2t |t Q So in other words it might be better to -
» : assign one party to do all maintenance
28 | respgnsibilit;es and have the other one reimbufse
24 “that party?

25 »,’ A Correct.
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Whatever percentage of allocation may be
determined.

0 As part of the Commission's decision, it

might be well that these proposed plans be

- submitted for review by the Bureau of Safety &

Compliance?

A Yes,

Tt would be a recommendation that I don't
know; I think the time frame is 60 days, or
whatever these plans be submitted, and we woﬁld
recommend the approval of the Commission before,
after conétruation starts.

MR. SALAPA: That's all I have.

MS. POYNTER: I have no quéStions,

CROSS~EXAMINATION

BY MS. D'ALFONSO:

Q Review of the’underwater study -

A Yes, we have not seen that at all.

MS‘ D!'ALFONSO: ThekCourt has asked that we
provide thai to you.

I have no further qﬁestiops.

JUDGE NEMEC: Anything else?

MR\ SALAPA: No rediréct, Your Honor.

JUDGE NEMEC: I have no guestions.

All right.
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Anybody else have anything they want to offer
here today?

¥MS. POYNTER: No, Your Honor.

MS. D'ALFONSO: No.

MR. SALAPA: No.

JUDGE NEMEC: It doesn't help to not have
someone here from the County or Township, but
they're not here, so we'll do the best wé can.

Thank YOU all for your attendance. I ask
that you submit what you've either volunteered to
submit or been asked to submit within 30 days.

’We're adjourned.

{The hearing conaluded‘at‘lzzso p.m.}

I héreby cértify that the procee&inQS and
evidence taken by me in the above-entitled m’atter "
are fully and accurately indicated in my notes and

that thig is a Erue ahd correct transcript of same.

Lo Gt £

Fdward Gerenda, Jr., Reporter/sig
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